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7. DESCRIPTION
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Diamond Street between Broad and Van-Pelt Streets boasts a gpand collectlon of large
row houses interspersed with several elaborate churches, all built between 1875 and
1897, - These buildings incliude fine examples of the work of gpecific architects,
examples of post Civil War Vlctorlan styles and the popular .vernacular tradition.

This portion of Diamond Street, one of the widest streets in North Philadelphia,
measures. seventy feet across. The many blocks of houses whtith line the street exhibit
more generous proportions than those on the surrounding parallel streets, They all
rise at least three stories: in height, span two bays oxr more’¥n width and have paired
entryways and stoops. Within Ythis context, the houses vary Wldely, displaying the
great variety of Victorian detallfhnd composition,

The earliest houses on Dlamondj-ireet represent relatively pure examples of the styles
prevailing at the time., The hotises on the south side'of thé 2100 block of Diamond
Street, built in-1875 remain exemplars of the Second Emplre ‘style. This collection
of serpentine faced stfuctures is ornamented with projecting bays, segmental arched
dormers and slate covered mansards. .Several rows, built slightly later, utilize the
Italianate style with its heavily bracketed cornice, window hoods and arched door
opeangs, This versatile style suits the row house particularly well since most
Italianate design elements can be - . expressed on a single flat facade. The purest
examples of the Italianate style along Diamond Street can be found on the north’ 51de
of the 1600 block and both 51des of the 2000 block.

Various . other rows, executed in a vernacular tradition utlllze the basic form of a

. three-~story, two bay row house'dressed with ornament. and detail of the builders choice.
On Diamond Street in the late 1880s, brick corbelwork was the common means of decorat— -
ing the row house form. Possibly derived from North German -building traditiems,corbel-
work had become by 1880 so much a part of the American vernacular tradition that ek
can be ‘found throughout.North’ Philadelphia., Very fine examples of brick corbelled
cornices and fire wall d1v1der strips can be found on the rows on the south side of the
1400, 1500 and 1800 blocks, om. .north side of the 2000. blook and both 31des of the 1700
and 1900 blockse

The thlrd type of row houge encountered 1n the Diamond Street dlStrlct are those planned
and designed by architects. They creatively combined and 1nterpreted both verpacular
-and:styllstlc elements into an unique aesthetlou Frank Furness designed such a row for
the north side of the 1600 block of Diamond Street, These:brick row houses manifest
_the,typlcal three-story, two bay row house form enriched by’ a heavily rusticated water-
table ‘and.scroll-like pinnaclesprojecting above each fire wall, Other rows designed
by architect Willis Hale depart more radically from the nortis - Tn the north side of the-
1800 block, Hale mixed styles and materials to create several:related’ wariations. On
the watertable he used a combination of smooth and rusticated. stone to achieve on two
houses a basketweave pattern and on others an alternatlng series of hor1zonta1 bands.
For the: doorway and windows,. ‘Hale employed the Moorish keyhole arch on a pair of the
houses while’a rectangular or "rounded appears on others. These . individual .designs -are
united at the cornice level with a corbelled cornice wrapped over a, horseshoe arche
Other fine examples of architect. de51gned rows -include Hale's Gothic, Moorish and
Colonial Revival influenced row on the north side of the 1900 block, and Angus Wade 5
Gothic row on the north side of the 1400 block.

80.522 (Rev, 8/82) ~ Page 1 Reverse
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Diamond Street from Broad Street to Van Pelt Street possesses significance
as the most intact grand avenue of speculative Victorian townhouses in

North Philadelphia and as an expression of the architectural and residential
aspirations 6f the city's nouveau riche during the expansive era of post
Civil War industrialization. Like much of North Philadelphia west of

Broad Street, Diamond Street became developed between 1875 and 1900 as a
response to the dramatic growth of the city's population, the marked changes
in the scale of capital and the transformation of Philadelphia's economic
base conjoined with the extension of the public transportation system.
Diamond Street stands out in this context owing to its extraordinarily

large, oftem architect designed, row houses and churches erected to attract
the elite of the new entrepreneural and upper middle classes,

Even before the construction of any houses here, Diamond Street was rlanned
as the grandest east-west avenue in North Philadelphia, When the
ubiquitous street grid for this area first appeared on paper in 1838 as a
part of Penn Township, the street received the name Lebanon, following

the pattern of denominating the east-west streets of North Philadelphia for
Pennsylvania counties. In this period, farmland, crossed only by the occasional
unpaved road, characterized this section of the City. The long since
demolished 18th century Kohn Mansion occupied a site at 18th and Diamond
and..the Punch Bowl Tavern stood near the corner of Diamond and Broad
Streets. In 1858, following the consolidation of the City and County of
Philadelphia, the street became Diamend, rather than Lebanon and was drawn
on the plat at 60 feet in width, equal to the other main east-west arteries
such as Columbia or Susquehanna Avenues. In 1872, the portion of the
Street between Broad Street and Failrmount
paved thoroughfare and had its name change
to a main entrance to Fairmount Park.
Street grew to seventy feet making it,
Street in North Philadelphia.
in 1895 to avoia confusion with

Park Avenue, it bore the designa
opment.

d to Park Avenue because it led
At the same time, the width of the
along with Broad Street, the widest
Although the name reverted back to Diamond
the nearby north-south street also callegd
tion Park Avenue during the era of devel-
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The industries created not only blue collar jobs for the swarms of native
born moving into the city and the thousands of immigrants streaming in
from Europe, but also managerial positions to administer the factories.
This in turn led to augmentation in the demand for professional services
by lawyers, bankers and physicians as well as in an expansion of retail
basinesses. The larger number of relatively high paying employment
opportunities created a class of people that could afford to purchase
substantial new houses. Developers built Diamond Street for this market.

Even with the increased demand for new housing, Diamond Street could not
have developed as a purely residential neighborhood without the extension
of the streetcar system. Relatively few Philadelphia families possessed
the wherewithal to maintain horses and carriages, and the cost of riding
the streetcars before electrification proved prohibitive for the working
classes, consuming from nine to twenty-six percent of the average laborer's
daily wage. Thus most Philadelphians walked to work and, of necessity,
lived within a reasonable distance of the factory or shop. The route to
work contributed much to the form and composition of many neighborhoods
with dwellings and manufactories in close proximity to one another.

Diamond Street assumed a different shape however. To be sure, as demon-
strated by the utter absence of carriage houses and even of livery stables,
the rather affluent occupants of Diamond Street did not keep horses and

equipage. They,could, however, afford to ride the horsecar lines, and
the development of Diamond Stree

treets north to Susqguehanna Avenue, just
one block north of Diamond Street. This facilitated commutation to Center
C%ty and othexr places of employment; indeed, it made Diamond Street as
Diamond Streed possible.
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7. Description

The architect designed churches of Diamond Street represent some of the
finest examples of. their respective Victorian styles, Romanesque and Gothic
Revival in the City of Philadelphia., The Jones Tabernacle African
Methodist Episcopal Church, formerly the Methodist Episcopal Union Church,

" executed in light colored stone affords a classic example of the Romanesque
Revival made popular by the architect H. H. Richardson. The composition of
the front facade of the church consists of; a central gabled nave containing
a great arched entryway surmounted by three large-arched windows, a four— '
story tower with open belfry and pointed steeple on the left, and a two and
a half story stair tower on the right side. The building has rusticated

. voissoirs, medieval stome carving and polychrome banded stonework, all
~ hallmarks of the Richatdson Romanesque.

The New Jerusalem Baptist Church, formerly the Park Avenue Baptist Church, at
22nd and Diamond Streets serves as a good, though relatively simple,
expression of the Gothic Revival parish church, The church complex, built of
a red brown random-coursed ashlar, unrelieved by carvings, is composed of a
gable roofed nave, a truncated square tower, a polygonmal sunday school wing
and a one story office block capped by a stepped gable. To Diamond Street

" the church presents it's gabled nave end pierced by one large stained glass
lancet window and the 51ng1e stage bell tower whlch rises to a heavy modil-
lioned cormice.

The work of Charles:M. Burns, The George W. South Memorial Church of the
Advocate at 18th and.Diamond Streets stands as a superlative demonstratlon
-of the French Gothic style. Burns had the three part complex of church,

. school and chapel constructed of randofn coursed stone. The church, a tall
cruciform structure has buttressed walls pierced by multiple stained glass
lancet windows and an apse ambulatory with radlating bays. The interior
contains a clerestoried nave with flanking alsles and an authentlc vaulted
stone roof, ~

The row houses and chutrches of Diamond Street represent one.of the most
grand and stylistically -intact avenues of Vlctorlan archltecture in the
City of Philadelphia.



8., Significance

An examination at the 1884 City Directory reveals a picture of
the first generation of Diamond Street residents as white

collar commuters. The role of industry in creating a class of
affluent middle-class homeowners is exemplified by such Diamond
Street residents as Jerome Sheip of 1730 Diamond, co-owner of
the firm of Sheip and Vandegrift which made wooden boxes at

215 Race Street; Theodore Benade of 1910 Diamond Street listed
as a company foreman; or Hugh Donahue, metermaker of 14235
Diamond Street. Other Diamond Street occupants made their
livings from retail stores which sold the products of the
flourishing industries. Chester Griesemer of 1542 Diamond Street
was co-owner of the clothing store Geiger and €riesemer at 1209
Market Street. Isaac Hopkins of 1502 Diamond Street operated a
furniture store at 227 N. 10th Street. All of these work
addresses were within the Central Business District and necessi-
tated a commute to work. Only a few of the street's residents,
such as Hermann Voshage, a druggist who lived above his store at
1946 Diamond Street or North Philadelphia real estate developers
and builders, such as Thomas A. Parks of 1800 Diamond or Samuel
Pennypacker of 1901 Diamond, lived near their places of employ-
ment. In any case, all of these Diamond Street homeowners

illustrate the changes in economic and employment patterss after
the Civil War in Philadelphia.

Civil War and themselves represent this newly Prosperous class.

The earliest builder in the area, John B. McMillen, construected

nine Second Empire row houses at 2100 to 2116 Diamond Street in 1875.
The development continued at the western end of the district with

a row of six brick houses, 2006-2116 erected by Samuel Kirkpatrick
in 1876 and eight marble~faced Italianate houses, 2003-2015 by
Stephen Humphreys in 1877. Mr. Humphreys, like most of the develop-
ers of Diamond Street, had both his house and office in North
Philadelphia. He appears in the City Directory as head of the firm
Humphreys, McDonell and Cornell, builders, at 1836 North 9th Street,
and lived at 1947 North 11th Street. The two most important
developers of Diamond Street, in terms of sheer volume of buildings,
were John Sharp and John Stafford. Beginning at the east end of

the district, the developer/builder John Sharp erected 128 row
houses, over half of all the houses in the district, between 1886
and 1889. John Stafford constructed two rows in the 1400 and 1700

blocks between 1887 and 1900. These two builders grew wealthy as
developers of block after block



8. Significance

The City Directories list only one developer as having a downtown
business address. The Page Brothers, developers of the sixteen
hundred block north and socuth sides, and the north side of the
seventeen hundred block of Diamond Street appear in the City
Directory as having a real estate business at 140 S.4th Street.
The Pages lived at 1820 Chestnut Street. These downtown based
developers chose the architect Frank Furness to design their row
at 1601 to 1641 Diamond Street. Furness was an architect of pre-~
ference for Philadelphia's more established wealth residing south
of Market Street. The interest of downtown real estate developers
commissioning these rare examples of Frank Furness's work in
North Philadelphia suggests a high level of refinement achieved
on Diamond Street.

The speculative real estate developers who built the houses of
Diamond Street took full advantage of the potential grandeur of
this wide avenue to the Park to erect large scale, high fashion
houses to attract the nouveau riche home buyer. The three-story
houses of Diamond Street stand 18 to 20 feet in width and 65 to

80 feet in depth,while the more common two-story houses of the
surrounding streets measure 15 to 16 feet wide and 58 to 60 feet
long. Although the houses on Diamond Street share brick construct-
ion with those found throughout the city, there is a higher pro-
portion of houses faced with stone, serpentine, brownstone and
marble, than on most other streets in North Philadelphia.
Pescriptions of the interior of the houses found in inzurance
surveys give an image of houses detailed with expensive materials
and equipped with the latest technological innovations. An 1894
survey for a house in the 1400 block of Diamond Street described
several stained glass windows, oak wainscotting throughout the
first floor, brass fixtures in the bathrooms with sink tops of
"Mexican Onyx" or "colored marble". Technological features included
enameled tile walls in the kitchen for easy cleaning, a single
oven range, hot and cold running water, porcelain lined iron sinks
and tubs, and gas heat piped through 15 registers.

The earliest rows on the street, while probably not architect
designed, represent elegant renditions of popular styles such as
Second Empire, 2106-2116 Diamond, and Italianate, 2001-2011 and
2016-2026 piamond. Many of the rows of later houses in the district
came from the offices of well known Victorian architects who imagin-
atively interpreted the latest modes to produce attractive and
fashionable buildings. Bome of the ocutstanding designs were pPro-
duced by Willis Hale and Angus Wade, two architects who designed

many ornate row houses and commercial buildings in North Philadelphia
and often worked with the developers John Stafford and John Sharp.
Both architects used an eclectic mix of current styles such as
Gothic, Moorish, and Romanesque revival to produce flamboyant designs
that would be attractive to the upwardly mobile middle class buyer.



8. Significance

The 10 row houses at 1921-39 Diamond Street by Willis Hale for
John Sharp serve as an especially decorative example of this,.
They form a radical mix of stylistic elements including a

fourth floor loggia of Moorish influenced arches, Beaux Arts
classical swags on the pressed metal cornices and door pediments
as well as vaguely Romanesque first floor arched windows.

Angus Wade executed another row for John Sharp, 1823-1833 Diamond
Street with Moorish horseshoe arches in the cornices, heavily
rusticated watertables in a basket weave pattern and circular
window openings. Many of the simpler rows have brick facades
ornamented with a brownstone watertable and a decorative corbel-
led brick cornice. These, too, reveal grandness in their height
and repetition of architectural elements.

As a Rpajor east-west street, Diamond Street provided a natural
location for several important North Philadelphia churches. The
churches reflected the wealth of their congregations with lavish
designs by important Philadelphia architects. The Park Avenue
Baptist Church and Sunday School at 2017-2029 Diamond Street by
Hazelhurst and Huckel, built in 1885, brought an English Gothic
parish church to the neighborhood. The Union Methodist Episcopal
Church at 2017-2019 Diamongd Street, also by Hazelhurst and Huckel,
and built in 1887, stands as one of the rare fine examples of the
Richardson Romanesque in Philadelphia. Hazelhurst and Huckel had
a national reputation for their churches and mansions. The French
Gothic Episcopal Church of the Advocate by Charles M. Burns soars
as literally the outstanding edifice on Diamond Street in 1887,
This building, planned by "Philadelphia's leading designer of
Episcopal churches and former pupil of American Gothicist F. L.
Withers," offers the finest example of French Gothic architecture
in Philadelphia. This trio of churches attests to the role of
Diamond Street as a showplace of wealth and architectural grandeur.
Because of the nature of Diamond Street as an area of fashionabile
housing for a rising class of entrepreneurs, the neighborhood
experienced rapid social change. Within ten Years after the
initial Occupation of the houses, a turnover occurred as the
original owners moved on to more newly fashionable neighborhoods
a?d & second generation of homeowners arrived, The 1900 census
lists ? ?lass of people possessing a lesser social standing than
the or%glnal owners, For example Blackburn Jones, a clerk at the
gii%o:;n;;r::22ﬁ ;509 and Fr?derick.F%oyd, a pa¥master owned 1607
i . everal Jewish families established residence on
Diamond Street as well. These included Moses Krauss at 1533 ang
Harry Stern at 1609 Diamend. Many of the Diamond Street buildings,
housed unrelateq boarders who rented rooms. After 1900 the
hia Architects 1700-1930
r of the Diamond Street houses

indicates the conversion of a numbe
into apartments. TIn the period following the Second World War

many w@ite residents moved to developing neighborhoods further Norih,
In their place, g newly Bmerging black community entered and
resettled the area. In recent ¥Years, the housesg along Diamond Street



B. Significance

have suffered significant deterioration owing to the high incidence
of poverty and unemployment that afflicts the neighborhood,
absentee ownership and the costs associated with maintaining these
large houses as well as adequate public funding to assist in their
preservation rehabilitation. Fortunately, a private non-profit
organization, the Advocate Community Development Corporation, has
developed a strategy for a renewal of the street. Plans for the
rehabilitation of the Diamond Street buildings to provide low and
moderate income housing for the area's residents have received
wide acclaim.

Diamond Street between Broad and Van Pelt Streets has historical
significance as a streetcar~dependent residential area that
developed between 1875-1895 to house Philadelphia's post Civil War
upper middle-class. It possesses architectural significance both
as a showplace for buildings that constitute fine examples of
particular styles and the work of particular architects and more
importantly for the grandeur of its largely intact Victorian
Streetscape that is unique in the City of Philadelphia.



T

LA R

n
o ol
4
"

s e u

S 00 8 TR bl o ey

YNNYHINOsNS
gy 2 20

M
z
H
w
H

TIN5 = = € i
B0ST0CH,” E Y s REET
—

HEARCHIEMERITH S S | OETRINIELTETRTI O
= e g

i RSN LN FE PRI -1 —— - SEUSTEEEN NI LLL S
{l
B t!A Fal 1) 137
ihuaaibai i IARERNIYE L | EARRERTIRAT 7
=TT il
v e )
2 » !

= s s
G TSN e O NI ABEL
il § == =00 i uf:}'
S i 3 == , |
s e " © Y STREET T

 —
-, uBER i . o STREET L - ijr:
= ‘FiHii‘”H i'D il
S | AR

T ‘-::—— D —— T = Lhﬁ
R g 1 ] L

I

i

P
| I—

il

[

[EII I
T

il R

M
Tl R e S s e
= HHHIE '

. STREET

o s

T

=4
3N

A0OHIS
AZHNING DL

_" '-|‘ ) : "

3t %lm!'f: '
in Ao

- _ £

. £
. et b

, T

CHNGHDAY 11

AHDNYY

BTHES T



9. Major Bibliographical References

Bromley; Atlas of Philadelphia, Volume 6, 1888,

Bromley; Atlas of Philadelphia, Volume 6, 1894,

Cutler, William W. IXII and Howard, Gillette Jr.; The Divided
Metropolis, Social and Spacial Dimensions of Philadelphia,
1800-1975; Greenwood Press, Westport, Connecticut, 1980.

Hershberg, Theodore; Philadelphia, Work, Space, Family and The
Group Experience in the 19th Century; Oxford University Press,
New York, 1981.

Hopkins, G. M. and Company; City Atlas of Philadelphia, Volume 2,
2lst and 28th Wards, 1875.

Hopkins, G. M. and Company; City Atlas of Philadelphia, 1884.

Deeds.
Insurance Surveys.

Landes, DPaniel; "An Historic Overview of the 1700 Block of West
Diamond" Unpublished Paper, 1983.

Map of Penn Township, 1838.

Pennsylvania Historic Resource Survey Forms, North Philadelphia
Survey.

Road Docket Ordinance 911858,



1423-1433

1435-1437

1412-1420

1422-1436

1500-1542
(1516, 1518
demolished)

1601

INVENTORY

Diamond Street

Attributed to Angus Wade; John Stafford, Builder 1889
Six, three-story brick row houses with brownstone facadss.

A pressed metal cornice and a low hipped roof relieved by

gabled dormergcontaining a trefoil design span the row.

A two-story pressed metal turret survives at 1423. A one-

story and a two-story bay add to the modest brick Carlisle

Street elevation of 1423. The facade of 1425 has been

stuccoed. Contributing.

Vacant lot

* & * Kk *k * ¥

John M. Saarp, Builder 1886
Five, three-story brick row houses with brownstone facades,
Distinguishing featuresgs include paired doorways and stoops,
pressed metal cornices, and incised window and door lintels.
Ground floor windows at 1412 altered to a commercial design.

A pair of second story metal bays are found on the side

elevation of 1420. Contributing.

John M. Sharp, Builder 1886
Four pairs of three-story brick houses with brownstone
watertables, sills, lintels and band courses. Other features

of interest include corbelled brick and metal cornices, pair doors
and stoops and projecting bays of frame construction.
Contributing.

ok k Kk Kk % &

John M. Sharp, Builder 1887
Twenty, three-story brick row houses with brownstone water-
tables, lintels and band courses. Corbelled brick and

metal cornices, add dimension to the building facades. Paired
deorways and stoops line the street., Alterations include a
fourth floor mansard at 1540 and turn-of-the-~-century store-

fronts at 1542, Projecting bays exist along the side elevations
of 1500 and 1542. Eontributing.

* % * k * * &

Vacant lot




1603-1643

1600

1602-1610

1612-1614

1616-1622

l624-1626

l628-1630

l632-~-1636

Furness, Evans & Co., Architects 1887
Twenty-one, three-story brick row houses with rusticated
brownstone watertables, sills and band courses. Other

features include paired doors and stcocops, corbelled brick

and metal cornices and pressed metal scroll finals. The

building at 1643 has a two-story projecting bay on its 17th
Street elevation and a turn-of-the-century ground floor
shopfront. Contributing.

® % * % * * *

Circa 1885
One, three-story brick row house. The defining features
include a wooden cornice, a pressed metal bay covering the
second and third story and an intact Victorian storefront.
Contributing.

Vacant lot

Circa 1885
Two, three-story brick row houses. The defining features
include; brownstone facades, wooden cornices, paired stoops
and doorways. Contributing.

Joseph Page, Jr., Developer; Italianate 1876
Four, three-story brick row houses possess random coursed

white marble facades, segmental arched windows, paired door-

ways and stoops. Ground floor of 1616 altered. Contributing.

Circa 1885
Two, three-story brick row houses include brownstone facades,
wooden cornices, paired stoops and doorways. Coentributing.

Vacant lot

Bell Telephone Company Exchange Building 1906
John T. Windrim, Architect; Colonial Revival

Three-story three bay brick office building. The distinguish-
ing features include: tetrastyler marble fronticepiece
surrounding the arched doorway, twelve over twelve sash

windows, segmental arched brick lintels with marble kkystones

at upper floors and marble surrounds on the first floer, a

marble beltcourse above the first floor, and a heavy modillioned

and denticulated cornice containing a pediment over the entry
bay. Contributing.

* * * % * * %




1701-1713

1715-1721

1723~-1745
(1729, 1741
demolished)

1700-1736

1801-181%

1823-1835

John Stafford, Builder 1890
Seven, three-story brick row houses. The brownstone facades

are graced by paired doorways and stoops and a pressed metal
cornice. 1701 Diamond retains a metal turret at the corner

and two second floor bays on the 17th Street facade.
Contributing.

Vacant lot

Louis R. Page, Developer 1888
Ten three-story brick row houses possess brownstone water-
tables, lintels and sills, paired doorways and stoops, and
corbelled brick and metal cornices. Ground floor alterations
have occurred on 1723, 1725, 1731, 1737. Additions to 1745
include a front two-story metal bay and a 4th-story mansard.
Contributing.

* Kk & & Kk * X

John M. Sharp, Builder l1ge6-87
Nineteen, three-story brick row houses. The buildings are
distinguished by brownstone watertables, lintels and sills,
paired doorways and stoops, and corbelled brick and metal
cornices. Ground floor alterations have oeccurred on 1700,

1702, 1704, 1718. 1720 has been stuccoed. Contributing.

* * * * * * *

Memorial Church of the Advocate 1887-97
Charles M., Burns, Jr., Architect; French Gothic Revival

This magnificent complex includes the church, cloister and

walls of the partially demolished chapel. The church, a 2%-
story stone structure, possesses a cruciform shape and a

rounded apse with radiating bays. The walls containing

stained glass windows supported by flying buttresses, rise

up to a vaulted stone ceiling. Copper sheaths the gabled

roof. Significant.

Attributed to Angus Wade; John M. Sharp, Builder 1889
These seven brick paired houses vary in design and material
though they are related by recurrent architectural motifs

such as brick corbelled cornices wrapped around a moorish

arch, circular or oval windows and rusticated stone watertables
and stoops. All are three stories tall except for 1835, John
Sharp's own mansion rises to a fourth story mansard, and its
decorative features include a corner turret, a projecting
flemish gable and rusticated voissoirs above arched windows.
The main entrance, con the 19th Street side of the building,

is flanked by arched windows on one side and a second floor

bay window on the other. Contributing.




1800-1838

1901-19219

1921-1939

1900-1916
(log2
demolished)

John M. Sharp, Builder 1888-89

Twenty, three-story brick row houses. The defining features
include brownstone watertables and trim, paired doorways and
stoops, and corbelled brick and metal cornices. The 1%th
Street facade of 1836 contains a second floor bay window.
First floor alterations have occurred on 1800, 1814, 1836,
1838, Contributing.

* * kK % Kk * &

John M. Sharp, Builder

Ten three-story brick row houses. The houses possess brown-
stone watertables and trim, paired doorways and stoops, and
corbelled brick and metal cornices. The side facades of
1901 and 1919, aach adorned by two bay windows, rise to
corbelled brick cornices. Contributing.

Attributed to Willis G. Hale, Architect

John M. Sharp, Builder

These ten orange brick row houses vary in design fellowing
an ABCBAABCBA pattern. The four buildings following pattern
A rise four stories in height, topped by an open moorish
loggia. They have columned fronticepieces surrounding the
doorways, each topped by a broken pediment. They are decor-
ated by pressed metal cornices and second floor bays. 1921
and 1937 each have two three-sided metal bays and three
spire-like prajecting dormers adorning their side facades.
The four pattern B houses stand three stories tall and have
an open full width front porch tucked under the second and
third stories. The second story fenestration consists of
three rectangular gothic windows. The flat roof has a front
mansard with a hipped dormer containing three pointed arch
windows.

The pattern C buildings duplicate the design (pattern B)
except that the second floor fenestration consists of two
oriel windows and the pressed tin cornice of pattern A has
been added above the second floor level. Significant.

John M. Sharp, Builder Circa
Eight three-story brick row houses. The decorative elements
include brownstone watertables and trim, paired entranceways
and stoops, and corbelled brick and metal cornices. The 19th

1889

1889

1889

Street facade of 1900 contains two second floor bavs and decor-

ative brick corbelwork. Contributing.




1918-1946
(1232
demolished)

2001

2003-2015

2019

2031-2045

2000-2004

2006-2014

John M. Sharp, Builder Circa 1889
Fourteen, three-story brick row houses possess brownstone

faced first floors, terra cotta trim, paired entranceways

and stoops and pressed tin cornices. Ground floor altera-

tions have occurred on 1918, 1920, 1946. Contributing.

* & * &k * % *x

Vacant lot

Stephen Humphreys, Builder; Italianate 1877
Seven three-story brick row houassa. Stone watertables, door

and window hoods and gquoins grace the facades of these houses.
Other defining elements include paired entrances and stoops,
front two story, three-sided bays and wooden bracketed

cornices, 2015 has been drastically altered with a three-~

story front addition. Contributing.

Jones Tabernacle African Methodist Episcopal Church 1887-~-88
{previously Methodist Episcopal Union Church)
Hazelhurst and Huckel, Architects; Richardson Romanesque
Three-story cruciform church with four story bell tower,
rectory, Sunday School building. The buildings, constructed
of brick are faced with two shades of light colored rusti-
cated stone. The facade, an elaborate Romanesque composition,
has a deep entrance areh containing stairs leading to the
sanctuary on the second flopr. The galleried interior of
this church contains ornate iron columns which carry the raof.
The magnificently restored interior is also architecturally
significant. Significant.

John M. Sharp, Builder 1888
Eight, three-story brick row houses. Decorative features
include: brownstone watertables and trim, paired doorways

and stoops, and corbelled brick and metal cornices. The side
facade of 2031 and 2043 each contain two second floor bays.
Contributing.

* * % % * * %

Vacant lot

Samuel Kirkpatrick, Builder; Italianate 1877
These five three-story brick row houses feature paired stoops
and doorways, marble trim, and wooden cornices. 2006 has an

added two-story metal bay, while 2014 has a shopfront
addition. Contributing.




2016-2026
{2020
demolished)

2028-2042
2101-2109
2111-2119
2100, and
2106-2116
2102

2104

Samuel Kirkpatrick, Builder; Italianate 1877
Five, three-story brick row houses, faced with random coursed
marble., Defining features include paired entranceways and

stoops as well as wooden cornices. The facade of 2026 has

been stuccoed and the cornice removed. Altered ground floor

at 2016, Contributing.

Samuel Kirkpatrick, Builder; Italianate 1877
Eight, three-story brick row houses. Marble trim, paired
doorways and stoops, wooden bracketed cornices. The 21st

Street facade of 2042 contains a two story projecting bay

and a wooden second floor porch at the rear. 2040 Altered

with permastone and ground floor commercial window.

Contributing.

* * % * % % &

Charles H, Quilton, Developer 1894
Five, three-story vellow brick row houses. The houses have
paired doorways and stoops, rusticated stone trim, pressed

metal cornices and rounded turrets on front corners of 2101

and 2109, 2105 has a projecting metal bay and porch. The

side facade of 2101 contains two second floor shingled bays.
Contributing.

New Jerusalem Baptist Church (formerly Park Avenue Baptist 1885
Church and Sunday School)

Hazelhurst and Huckel, Architects; Gothic Reviwval

This church complex contains a gable roofed church, polygonal

Sunday School wing and square three-story tower, all constructed

of dark rusticated stone. The gable Bnd of the church, which

faces the street, carries a large stained glass lancet window.

The three stage tower built without a steeple rises to a

heavily bracketed cornice. Contributing,.

John B. McMillan, Builder; Second Empire 1875
Seven, three-story brick row houses. The houses, faced with
serpentine stone have brownstone trim, paired arched entry-

ways and stoops, first floor wooden bays and third floor

slate covered mansard with paired dormers. The facades of

2112, 2114, 2116 have been stuccoed. Storefront alterations

have occurred on 2100 and 211l6. Contributing.

Circa 1890
Three~story brick row house. The defining features include

an arched doorway, and a first floor storefront. The building
presently lacks a cornice. Contributing.

Vacant lot




	Diamond Street nom
	Diamond Street Historic District Inventory

